Bylaws of theIllinois Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf

ARTICLE I. NAME AND PURPOSE

The name of this organization shall be the Illinois Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf (IRID). The purpose of the IRID is to promote the interpreting profession and professionalism in interpreting for people who are Deaf, DeafBlind, Hard of Hearing and Hearing.

SECTION 1: OBJECTIVES

As a sub-chapter of RID, an organization that has played a leading role in establishing a national standard of quality for interpreters and transliterators, IRID works to support growth of the profession, to educate the public about the vital role of interpreters and transliterators and to ensure equal opportunity and access for all individuals.

The mission and values of IRID are reflected in the following statement and incorporated into the actions and activities of all IRID initiatives:

SECTION 2: MISSION - WHAT WE DO

The Illinois Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf strives to advocate for best practices in interpreting, to sponsor professional development for practitioners, and to encourage the highest standards in the provision of interpreting services for diverse users of languages that are signed or spoken.

ARTICLE II. MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1: DIVERSITY STATEMENT

IRID is open to all individuals and organizations without regard to age, color, political belief, ability, hearing status, marital status, national or ethnic heritage, religion, race, gender identity and expression, sexual orientation, or veteran status.

SECTION 2: CATEGORIES

Voting members - persons who are members in good standing of IRID and RID, Inc., with membership in an RID voting category.

Non-voting members - persons who are members in good standing of IRID and may or may not have membership in any RID, Inc. non-voting category. This may include students and allies of the profession.

Organizational members - any organization with an interest in supporting the association; carries no voting privileges.

SECTION 3: MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERSHIP

- 1. A general membership meeting must be convened annually. The Board shall set the date at least thirty (30) days in advance and notify the membership in writing; via U.S. mail or electronic mail.
- 2. There shall be as many other subsequent meetings of the organization as are deemed necessary and such meetings may be called by the president or at the formal request of at least ten (10) voting members. Notice of subsequent meetings must be sent to the membership at least ten (10) business days in advance of the meeting.
- 3. Non-voting members may participate in discussions at meetings, but may neither make nor second motions.
- 4. A quorum to conduct business for all membership meetings shall consist of no less than 15% of the current voting membership.

SECTION 4: FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

- 1. Dues: Annual IRID membership dues shall be set by a vote of the membership.
- Assessments: Assessments may be levied on all members by action of two-thirds of the voting members in good standing at any meeting, provided previous notice has been given. A maximum of \$10 per member may be assessed in each fiscal year.

ARTICLE III. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1: COMPOSITION

The affairs of the IRID shall be governed by the Board of Directors (to be referred to as 'the Board') consisting of the following members: President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, three (3) Members-at-Large (MAL), a Student Representative, an Illinois Association of the Deaf (IAD) Representative, and (in alternate years) the Immediate Past President. Each member of the Board must be a voting member in good standing of RID, Inc. and IRID, except the IAD Representative, and a resident of the state of Illinois.

The Executive Board shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. All candidates for the Executive Board, shall have been IRID and RID members in good standing for at least two (2) consecutive years prior to candidacy. All candidates for remaining Board positions, with the exception of the IAD Representative and Student Representative, shall have been IRID and RID members in good standing for at least one (1) year. All IRID board members shall have voting privileges on the Board with the exception of the immediate past president.

Duties of IRID Board Members

- The President shall preside at all board and general membership meetings of the organization. With the approval of the Board, the President shall establish and dissolve committees whenever necessary to carry out the functions of the organization. The President shall be the official liaison to the RID, Inc. The President shall perform other duties as shall be designated by the Board.
- 2. The Vice President shall attend all Board meetings and, in the absence of the President, perform the duties of the President. The Vice President shall be a liaison to the Conference Committee. The Vice President shall also carry out other duties assigned by the Board.
- 3. The Secretary shall attend all Board meetings, take and keep minutes of all meetings of the organization. The Secretary shall be responsible for sending notices of all meetings, provide the minutes of each meeting to the newsletter editor, and other duties as delegated.
- 4. The Treasurer shall attend all Board meetings, chair the Financial Committee, collect the monies of the organization and make disbursements as directed by the Board. The treasurer shall prepare financial reports for each board meeting and prepare a year-end report. Treasurer reports and IRID financial records shall

be subject to a financial review at least every two (2) years. Financial reviews shall be an external audit by a qualified accounting professional. The Treasurer must be bonded. The fee for the Treasurer to be bonded shall be incurred by IRID. The outgoing Treasurer will work with the incoming treasurer to close out the conference. The handover of all financial documents and duties will take place no later than 30 days after the annual general membership meeting and conference.

- 5. The Members-at-Large shall attend all board meetings, serve as liaisons to IRID committees and be assigned duties by the Executive Board as deemed necessary.
- 6. The Student Representative shall attend all Board meetings and serve as a liaison between the Board and ITPs in the state of Illinois.
- 7. The IAD Representative shall function as a liaison between the Illinois RID and the Illinois Association of the Deaf and shall perform such other duties as prescribed by the IRID Board. The IAD Representative position shall be the current IAD President or a permanent IAD designee for the term of the sitting IAD President.
- 8. The Immediate Past President shall serve as a consultant to the Board. No voting privileges are accorded to the Immediate Past President.

SECTION 2: TERMS OF OFFICE/ELECTIONS

The President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer are elected by the membership for a term of two (2) years. President and Secretary shall be elected in odd numbered years, and Vice President and Treasurer shall be elected in even numbered years.

Members-at-Large shall be elected for a term of three (3) years. A new Member At Large shall be elected each year.

The Student Representative shall be elected for a term of one (1) year.

The term of immediate Past President shall be one (1) year.

All new terms begin at the close of the general membership meeting in which the new board member was voted in, with the exception of the Treasurer. Board members may not serve more than two (2) consecutive terms in any one Board position.

SECTION 3: MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

- 1. The board shall meet at least quarterly
- 2. A quorum for the IRID board meetings shall be a simple majority of the board.
- 3. IRID members may participate in discussions but may not make motions or vote.

SECTION 4: VACANCIES

In the event Board members cannot complete their term of office, the current Board will appoint a replacement for the remainder of the term.

ARTICLE IV. STANDING COMMITTEES/AD HOC

WORK GROUPS

SECTION 1: STANDING COMMITTEES

- Financial Committee: The financial committee shall be chaired by the
 Treasurer for a two (2) year term with as many members as appointed by the
 board. The treasurer shall act as liaison to the board for this committee. The
 function of this committee is to investigate monetary resources available and
 make recommendations to the board. Chair is not limited to one term.
- 2. **Membership Committee:** The membership committee shall be chaired for a two (2) year term by a member in good standing as approved by the board, and as many members as appointed by the chairperson. A Member-at-Large shall act as liaison to the board for this committee. The function of the committee shall be to recruit and to maintain membership regardless of age, color, political belief, ability, hearing status, marital status, national or ethnic heritage, religion, race, gender identity and expression, sexual orientation, or

- veteran status. The committee shall also maintain an up-to-date listing of members. Chair is not limited to one term.
- 3. Communication Committee: The communication committee shall be chaired for a two (2) year term by a member in good standing as approved by the board and as many members as approved by the chair. Member-at-Large shall act as liaison to the board for this committee. The function of this committee shall be to manage the IRID Website, email blasts, member surveys and pertinent communications with IRID members. Chair is not limited to one term.
- 4. **Professional Development Committee:** The PDC shall be chaired for a two (2) year term by a member in good standing as approved by the board and as many members as appointed by the chairperson. A Member-at-Large shall act as liaison to the board for this committee. The function of this committee shall be to plan and implement a minimum of two (2) professional development and continuing education opportunities annually. Chair is not limited to one term.
- 5. **Nominating Committee:** Nominations shall be made by a nominating committee consisting of three members selected by the President. The Nominating Committee shall convene 60 days prior to the election meeting. The Nominating Committee will compile a slate of nominees to be announced to the membership with the official notice of the election. Additional nominations may be made from the floor at the time of the elections. Voting shall be held at the annual meeting of the membership by simple majority. Chair is not limited to one term.
- 6. Bylaws Committee: Recommend bylaw changes, assures adherence to current bylaws. Compile the bylaws and policies and procedures manual. Review the bylaws, policies and procedures on a regular basis and update documents as necessary. Secure a qualified Parliamentarian to be present at all general and special membership meetings. Chair is not limited to one term.
- 7. **Conference Committee:** Charged with all aspects of the annual IRID Conference under the guidance of the Vice President and Board approval. Chair is not limited to one term.

SECTION 2: AD HOC WORK GROUPS

Ad hoc work groups shall be established and dissolved by the IRID President for a specific purpose as appropriate, with majority approval of the Board. A Member-at-Large shall act as liaison to the Board for these groups.

Examples of Ad Hoc work groups may include but are not limited to: Deaf Interpreter, Licensure, Awards, and Entry to Practice.

ARTICLE V. RID CMP SPONSORSHIP

Certification Maintenance Program Administrator: The CMP Administrator shall be a voting member or members in good standing and appointed by the President with the Board's approval. A Member-at-Large shall act as liaison to the board for this committee. The function of this position shall be to approve, file and process continuing education unit paperwork for workshops, conferences and independent studies in accordance with the RID PDC CMP Standards & Criteria Manual, and to maintain good sponsor status with RID, Inc.

ARTICLE VI. GOVERNING DOCUMENTS

The IRID shall make bylaws for their own government, not inconsistent with the laws and regulations promulgated by the Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf, Inc., as interpreted by the IRID board. Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, shall be the parliamentary authority governing deliberations of this organization. Additional information may be found in the IRID Policy and Procedure Manual.

ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed by two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by voting members. Written notice of such amendments must be given to the membership at least thirty (30) days in advance. Voting may be done by mail, or at any regular or subsequent meeting of the membership.

ARTICLE VIII. DISSOLUTION PROCEDURE

In the event of the dissolution of this organization, all remaining assets, real and personal property of whatever nature shall be transferred to the headquarters of the Registry of the Interpreters for the Deaf, Inc.